
  

Cultural Services Board Meeting Agenda Page 1 

CULTURAL SERVICES, HISTORIC 
PRESERVATION, & TREE ADVISORY BOARD 

AGENDA 
 

MONDAY               COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
June 2, 2025 - 5:30 PM             4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL                                         
 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one or more 
members of the Town Council or other Town Boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 
 
A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 
 
2. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM. 
 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA. 
 
4. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES: 
 
 A. April 7, 2025 
 
5. REPORT OF STAFF: 
 
 A. Cultural Services update – Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
 
 B. Public Works update – Steven Wargo, Public Works Director 
 
6. OLD BUSINESS: 
 

A. Continued Discussion – Potential Future Improvements of Town Athletic Courts. 
 

7. NEW BUSINESS: None. 
 
8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION. 
 
9. BOARD/STAFF DISCUSSION. 
  
10. ADJOURNMENT. 
Next Meeting:  Monday, July 7, 2025 
 
If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Cultural Services Board with respect to any matter considered 
at a meeting, they will need a record of the proceedings and to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made at their own expense. Persons who require accommodation to attend this hearing should contact the Ponce Inlet 
Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting date to request such assistance. 



 
 

 

 
Report to the Cultural Services, 

Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
 
Topic: Approval of Meeting Minutes 
 
Summary:  
 
Staff has prepared the attached set of meeting minutes for the Board’s 
review and approval. 
 
Suggested Motion/Action: 
 

Approval of the April 7, 2025 meeting minutes. 
 
Requested by: 
 

Ms. Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk 
 
Reviewed & Authorized by: 
 

Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
 
Approved by: 
 

Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2025 

Agenda Item:   4 



Cultural Services Board 04/07/2025  Page 1 of  2 
Meeting Minutes 

Town of Ponce Inlet 
CULTURAL SERVICES, HISTORIC PRESERVATION, 

AND TREE ADVISORY BOARD 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

April 7, 2025

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pursuant to proper notice, Chair Finch 1 
called the meeting to Order at 5:30 PM in the Council Chambers, located at 4300 S. Atlantic Avenue, 2 
Ponce Inlet, Florida and led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance.  3 

4 
2. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: A quorum was established with five 5 
regular members present; Ms. Canny was absent. 6 

7 
 Board members present: 8 

Ms. LaBarre, Seat 1  9 
Ms. Keese, Seat 2; Vice-Chair 10 
Mr. Shaffer, Seat 3 11 
Ms. Finch, Seat 4; Chair 12 
Ms. Bell, Seat 5 13 
Ms. Canny, Alternate Seat 1 – Absent 14 

15 
 Staff members present: 16 

Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 17 
Ms. Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 18 
Mr. Wargo, Public Works Director  19 

20 
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA: Chair Finch asked if there were any changes to the agenda; there 21 
were none. 22 

23 
Vice-Chair Keese moved to approve the agenda as presented; seconded by Ms. LaBarre. The motion 24 
PASSED by consensus, 5-0. 25 

26 
4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 27 

28 
A. March 3, 2025 – Chair Finch asked if there were any changes; there were none.29 

30 
Ms. LaBarre moved to approve the March 3, 2025 meeting minutes as presented; seconded by Mr. 31 
Shaffer. The motion PASSED by consensus, 5-0. 32 

33 
5. REPORT OF STAFF: 34 

35 
A. Cultural Services Update – Ms. Alex informed the Board that staff is preparing to36 

present the previously proposed meeting time change to the Town Council for consideration. She stated 37 
the Town’s Easter event will be held on April 19, and the “Ponce Preserves the Planet” event has been 38 
rescheduled to April 26. 39 

40 

Item 4-A



 

 
 

Cultural Services Board Minutes           04/07/2025            Page 2 of 2 

B. Public Works Update – Mr. Wargo stated the Ponce Preserve boardwalk is open to the 41 
public and the Museum boardwalk repairs have been completed. A brief discussion ensued on the 42 
repairs and replacements that were completed. He stated staff is waiting on the manufacturer to provide 43 
the parts for the Timothy Pollard Memorial Park playground, so it will need to remain closed until the 44 
work is completed. The observation tower within Ponce Preserve will be refurbished and sealed upon 45 
completion. The bids received regarding the Timucuan Oaks Garden boardwalk and boat ramp pilings 46 
project exceeded the anticipated budget, so staff will reevaluate the scope of work and readvertise this 47 
project later.  Mr. Wargo stated the foliage alongside the south sidewalk in Ponce Preserve will be 48 
cleared, and pressure washing will occur in Kay & Ayres Davies Lighthouse Park within the coming 49 
week. 50 

 51 
6. OLD BUSINESS: None. 52 
 53 
7. NEW BUSINESS:  54 

 55 
A. Discussion – Building a “Rainbow Bridge” within Ponce’s Happy Tails Dog Park. 56 

Ms. Alex explained at the February 20, 2025 Town Council meeting, Ms. Debbie Darino proposed the 57 
installation of a “Rainbow Bridge” and an accompanying sign posted with a Rainbow Bridge poem 58 
within Ponce’s Happy Tails Dog Park. This bridge is intended to serve as a memorial for pets that have 59 
passed. Ms. Alex elaborated on the proposed design and foreseeable maintenance of the Rainbow 60 
Bridge; Ms. Darino also proposed a statue of the dog, “Ponce”, be constructed near the bridge. Vice-61 
Chair Keese provided comments on the proposed location within the park and suggested using dog tags 62 
instead of hanging collars or leashes on the bridge. Ms. LaBarre provided information on engraved 63 
plaques that could be used; the Board discussed options for plaques in lieu of leashes or tags. Ms. Bell 64 
inquired about the design of the bridge and Ms. Alex assured the Board that any structure must be 65 
permitted through the Town. The Board proposed posting a sign to include the Rainbow Bridge poem 66 
or a picture of the bridge, rather than constructing the full “Rainbow Bridge.” They discussed options 67 
for the Town to sell tags to hang on the sign to memorialize pets, the required maintenance for upkeep, 68 
and the location. Ms. Alex reviewed the Town’s history with memorial sites and plaques. They 69 
continued discussions on potential ideas for the sign and the location of it. Chair Finch opened public 70 
participation – hearing none, public participation was closed.  71 
 72 
The Board recommended not to construct a “Rainbow Bridge”, requested staff to research the 73 
installation of a memorial Rainbow sign on the outer fence at Ponce’s Happy Tails Dog Park, and to 74 
bring this information back at a later meeting; 5-0, consensus. 75 
 76 
8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: There was no public participation.  77 
 78 
9. BOARD/STAFF DISCUSSION: Mr. Wargo commented on the safety hazard of bike riders 79 
on the Ponce Preserve boardwalk. The Board briefly discussed the situation.     80 
 81 
10. ADJOURNMENT: The meeting was adjourned at 6:01 p.m.  82 
 83 
Prepared and submitted by: 84 
 85 

Draft        86 
Stephanie Gjessing, Deputy Town Clerk 87 
Attachment(s): None. 88 



 
 

 

 
Report to the Cultural Services, 

Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
 
Topic:   Report of Staff 
  

 A. Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
 

 B. Steven Wargo, Public Works Director 

 
Summary:  Staff will provide reports and updates to programs, projects, 

  and events. 

 
Requested by: Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
   Mr. Wargo, Public Works Director 

 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
 

 

Meeting Date:   June 2, 2025 

Agenda Item:   5 



 
 

 

 
Report to the Cultural Services, 

Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 

 
Topic:   Continued Discussion – Potential Future Improvements of Town 
Athletic Courts.  

 
Summary:   At its April 17, 2025 meeting, the Town Council approved 
an amended and restated lease agreement with New Cingular Wireless 
PCS, LLC for the cell tower site at Pollard Park. The agreement calls for 
New Cingular Wireless to provide the Town with a $180,000 “signing 
bonus” based on the cost to install a protective structure over the existing 
pickleball courts. However, the Town Council wishes to explore other 
options. Please see the attached staff report and supporting documentation 
for further information. 

 
Suggested Motion/Action: Staff is seeking Board input and a formal 
recommendation to Town Council on how best to proceed with the 
$180,000 in funding. Staff requests the Board narrow its direction to one 
of the options provided in the staff report. 

 
Requested by: Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 

 
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

 

Meeting Date: June 2, 2025 

Agenda Item:   6-A 



Page 1 of 2 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
Date: May 20, 2025 
Subject: Continued Discussion - Potential Future Improvements of Town Athletic Courts 

MEETING DATE:  June 2, 2025 

Overview: 
At its April 17, 2025 meeting, the Town Council approved an amended and restated lease 
agreement with New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC for the cell tower site at Pollard Park. The 
agreement calls for New Cingular Wireless to provide the Town with a $180,000 “signing bonus” 
following the execution of the lease agreement by both parties. The amount is based on the cost to 
install a protective metal structure over the two pickleball courts closest to the tower, ensuring 
uninterrupted play during routine cell tower maintenance. However, this funding is unrestricted 
and may be applied to any capital improvement projects at the Town’s discretion. After discussion, 
the Town Council indicated interest in exploring the addition of pickleball courts instead.  

Background: 
At the June 3, 2024, Cultural Services Board meeting, Staff presented the issue of athletic court 
closures following an increase in maintenance activity on the adjacent cell tower, which resulted 
in frequent shutdowns of two pickleball courts and the tennis court (Attachment 1). The Board 
previously supported the installation of a protective structure over the pickleball courts to address 
safety concerns and minimize disruptions. At that time, courts were having to be closed without 
prior notice from the cell tower contractors. Under the new lease terms, the Town will now receive 
a minimum seven-day advance notice of scheduled maintenance, allowing time to proactively 
block out reservations.   

Discussion: 
In addition to the Council’s direction provided at the April 17, 2025, Town Council meeting, staff 
has received public input suggesting the conversion of either the existing basketball court or tennis 
court into additional pickleball courts. Based on the attached court dimensions, conversion of the 
tennis court is feasible and less costly, as it already includes lighting and fencing (Attachment 2). 
Converting the basketball court would require expanding the surface by at least 10 feet to both east 
and west, which would be more costly due to existing conditions such as lighting, sidewalk 
proximity, and site limitations (Attachment 3). Staff has considered temporary modifications to 
the tennis court, such as striping for pickleball and using portable nets, as a lower-cost, flexible 
solution. However, either option would result in the loss of the Town’s only full basketball or 

Item 6-A



Page 2 of 2 

tennis court. It is also important to note that increased use of athletic courts, regardless of 
configuration, would exacerbate existing parking limitations at Pollard Park. On busy days, park 
visitors already utilize overflow parking at the Ponce Inlet Community Center. 

Another option could include constructing new athletic courts within the wooded parcel adjacent 
to the Lighthouse and Marine Science Center (Attachment 4). Like the Town’s last two major 
park improvements, staff would seek funding through the Volusia ECHO program. However, this 
year’s ECHO application process is significantly more complex than in previous cycles. It requires 
complete construction drawings at the time of application, funding for which is not currently 
budgeted.  

Staff is seeking Board input and a formal recommendation to Town Council on how best to proceed 
with the $180,000 in funding. Staff requests the Board narrow its direction to one of the following 
options:  

1. Develop new pickleball courts, lighting, and parking within the Lighthouse parcel
a. Aligns with Council’s interest in expanding pickleball facilities
b. Expands recreational opportunities in a new area of Town
c. Requires complete construction drawings and significant staff time
d. Requires development of additional parking

2. Convert the existing basketball and/or tennis courts to pickleball courts & install a
half-court basketball facility at Davies Park

a. Aligns with Council’s interest in expanding pickleball facilities
b. Results in loss of a full court for another sport
c. Site-specific conditions pose cost and feasibility concerns
d. Introduces active recreation to a currently passive park

3. Make no changes
a. Maintains current facility configuration
b. Reserves funding for future initiatives
c. Imposes no immediate staff time or budget demands

4. Other option(s) as recommended by the Board

Attachments 
1. Cultural Services Board Staff report and meeting minutes excerpt - June 3, 2024
2. Pollard Park court dimensions- basketball and pickleball
3. Current basketball court at Pollard Park
4. Proposed location for new athletic courts within the Ponce Inlet Lighthouse parcel



Page 1 of 8 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 

while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 

To:  Cultural Services, Historic Preservation, and Tree Advisory Board 

From:  Jackie French, Cultural Services Manager 

Date:  May 25, 2023 

Subject: Discussion of potential future improvements on Town athletic courts  

 

MEETING DATE:  June 5, 2023 

 

Between the months of December 2022 through April 2023, the Pollard Park tennis court and two 

of the four pickleball courts experienced a higher frequency of closures due to elevated 

maintenance work performed on the cell tower adjacent to these courts.  

 

Staff has developed better lines of communication with the cell tower management company 

(Crown Castle) regarding upcoming closures; however, staff continues to receive feedback on the 

negative impacts from cancelled reservations.  

 

Pickleball remains the fastest growing sport in America, with an overwhelming 158% participation 

increase over three years, according to Sports & Fitness Industry Association Topline Participation 

Report 2023 (Exhibit 1). The demand for Pollard Park visitors to play this sport remains constant, 

as the four courts are filled with reservations.  

 

According to our reservation page, most reservations are made between the hours of 8:00 am-8:00 

pm, and very rarely between the hours of 12:00 pm and 3:00 pm (the hottest part of the day). 

During the peak play hours, 90% of all athletic court reservations are made for the pickleball 

courts. A daily average of 78% of the available pickleball reservations are filled, compared to 13% 

of tennis reservation slots, and 6% of racquetball reservation slots when all courts are open 

(Exhibit 2). 

 

Staff is considering potential improvements to the athletic courts within the Town to accommodate 

the demand as well as potential future closures due to elevated cell tower maintenance. Suggestions 

include installing a protective cover over the entire current pickleball courts, transforming the 

current basketball court into additional pickleball courts, and creating a half-court basketball court 

within Davies Park.  

 

A resident recently requested staff to consider transforming the basketball court to allow for 

temporary tennis play during closures due to cell tower maintenance. However, to meet tennis 

court regulation size, the basketball court would need to be extended in both length and width, 

Attachment 1



Page 2 of 8 

which the park cannot accommodate. Regulation size for tennis court length is 120 feet, which 

includes the 78-foot-long play area and space on each for serving (Exhibit 3). The current length 

of the basketball court is 67 feet. 

 

Current staff suggestions for future Town athletic courts are as follows:  

1. Providing a protective cover over the entirety of the current pickleball courts;  

2. Utilizing the space provided within Pollard Park to add pickleball courts- this may include 

transforming the current basketball court;  

3. Creating a half-court basketball court within Davies Park 

 

On this item, staff is seeking input from the Board on ideas for potential future improvements for 

the Town’s athletic courts. Specifically, if there is consensus on staff’s suggestions above, or if 

there are any additional recommendations from the Board to the Town Council.  

 

None of these projects would be requested in the Town’s budget for fiscal year 23/24, but it is 

important to determine the Board’s preferences for future planning purposes.  

 

 

 

         May 25, 2023 

Jackie French, Cultural Services Manager    Date 

 

 

Exhibits:  

1 Sports & Fitness Industry Association Topline Participation Report 2023 

2 Random sample of Pollard Park court reservations February through May 2023 

3 Tennis court regulation size 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 3 of 8 

Exhibit 1: 

Sports & Fitness Industry Association Topline Participation Report 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 4 of 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 5 of 8 

Exhibit 2: 

Random sample of Pollard Park court reservations February through May 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 6 of 8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Page 7 of 8 



Page 8 of 8 

Exhibit 3: 

Tennis court regulation size 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

Cultural Services Board    06/05/2023             Page 1 of 1 
Meeting Minutes 

A.  Discussion of potential future improvements on the Town’s athletic courts – Ms. 
French explained that two of the four pickleball courts have experienced a higher frequency of 
closures due to elevated maintenance work performed on the cell tower adjacent to the courts. She 
reviewed the demand for the Town’s pickleball courts and the potential improvements to 
accommodate the demand as well as future closures due to cell tower maintenance. Suggestions 
include: 1) installing a protective cover over the entire current pickleball courts; 2) utilizing the 
space provided within Pollard Park to add pickleball courts (which may include transforming the 
current basketball court); and 3) creating a half-court basketball court within Davies Park. Staff is 
seeking input for future improvements on the provided suggestions or if there are additional 
recommendations; she noted that none of these projects will be requested in the Town’s budget for 
FY 2023/24. Ms. Keese asked if the time to reserve the pickleball courts could be earlier. Ms. 
French replied yes and explained that staff is currently testing a new court reservation system. 
Chair Bell stated she is against changing the basketball court; Vice Chair Finch agreed. Members 
discussed the demand for the pickleball courts and the possibility of having “open” court times 
and how the new reservation system will work. Chair Bell opened public comments. 
 
Ms. Mary Lou Fillingame, 33 Ocean Way Drive, referred to the open-play pickleball being 
discussed and stated that when she is playing, they offer for others to play with them; she does not 
think reservations are a problem and that things could be left as is. She asked about cameras for 
the pickleball courts. Ms. French explained that is not part of this agenda item, but it has been 
submitted with the Information Technology (IT) department’s budget and is under consideration. 
Ms. Fillingame stated she does not think the Town should remove the tennis or basketball courts; 
she asked if there are any other green areas at Pollard Park that could be used for an additional 
pickleball court. Ms. French explained it is very restricted; however, there are ideas that maybe 
one more pickleball court could be added. Mr. Griffith noted that the contract with the cell tower 
owners is currently under negotiation and that there are structural issues with the tennis courts that 
will need to be addressed in the near future. Discussion continued regarding the pickleball courts; 
how open play would be managed, and how the cell tower maintenance affects court closures, and 
what could be negotiated with the cell tower owners regarding notification of closures. 
 
The Board agreed by consensus to install protective covers over the pickleball courts; leaving all 
courts as they are; and potentially bringing this item back to the Board in the future for further 
discussion; 5-0. 



x x x x x

x
x

x
x

xxxxx

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x
x

x x x x x

x
x

x
x

8.0' 20.0'

INCLUSIVE OF LINES

10.0' 20.0'

INCLUSIVE OF LINES

8.0'

66.0'

1
2

0
.
0

0
'

1
5

.
0

'
7

.
0

'
7

.
0

'
1

5
.
0

0
'

8
.
0

'
8

.
0

0
'

1
5

.
0

'
7

.
0

'
7

.
0

'
1

5
.
0

'
8

.
0

'
1

5
.
0

'

4
4

.
0

'

I
N

C
L

U
S

I
V

E
 
O

F
 
L

I
N

E
S

8
.
0

'

N
O

R
T

H

1
"
 
=

 
1
0
'

2
0

1
0

5
0

P
I
C

K
L

E
B

A
L

L
 
C

O
U

R
T

S
 
P

L
A

N

N
E

T
 
A

N
D

 
P

O
S

T
 
(
T

Y
P

.
)

S
E

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

 
T

H
I
S

 
S

H
E

E
T

1
0

'
 
H

I
G

H
 
C

H
A

I
N

 
L

I
N

K

F
E

N
C

E
 
O

N
 
3

 
S

I
D

E
S

4
'
 
H

I
G

H
 
C

H
A

I
N

 
L

I
N

K
 
F

E
N

C
E

B
E

T
W

E
E

N
 
C

O
U

R
T

S

N
O

 
W

I
N

D
S

C
R

E
E

N

3
'
 
G

A
T

E

(
T

Y
P

.
 
3

 
P

L
A

C
E

S
)

4
4

.
0

'

I
N

C
L

U
S

I
V

E
 
O

F
 
L

I
N

E
S

C
O

U
R

T
 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 
P

E
R

D
E

T
A

I
L

 
T

H
I
S

 
S

H
E

E
T

2
"
 
W

H
I
T

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

E

T
Y

P
I
C

A
L

T
E

N
S

I
O

N

W
I
N

C
H

3'-0"

4'-0"

5
/
1
6
"
 
X

 
3
"
 
L
G

.

B
O

L
T

 
(
2
)
 
W

/

A
C

O
R

N

N
U

T
S

11-1/4"

3
"
 
 
I
.
D

.

S
L
E

E
V

E

2'-0"

N
O

N
-
S

H
R

I
N

K

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 
F

O
O

T
I
N

G

P
L
A

Y
I
N

G
 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

S
T

O
P

 
C

O
L
L
A

R

2
-
7
/
8
"
 
O

.
D

.
 
G

A
L
V

A
N

I
Z

E
D

P
O

S
T

 
W

I
T

H
 
P

O
W

E
R

C
O

A
T

E
D

 
F

I
N

I
S

H

1
/
4
"
 
D

I
A

.
 
C

A
B

L
E

 
H

O
O

K

P
O

S
T

 
C

A
P

2
2
'
-
0
"
 
C

/
C

 
P

O
S

T
S

N
E

T
 
A

N
D

 
P

O
S

T
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

2

N
T

S

1
'
-
6
"

1'-0"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
I
C

K
L

E
B

A
L

L
 
C

O
U

R
T

S

C
-
5

0
4

S
H

E
E

T
 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S

D
O

 
N

O
T

 
S

C
A

L
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

M
&

H
 
N

O
.
:

D
A

T
E

:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

I
S

S
U

E
D

T
h
e
s
e
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
o
r

p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
f
o
r
 
w

h
i
c
h
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
i
n
t
e
n
d
e
d
.
 
M

e
a
d
 
&

 
H

u
n
t
 
s
h
a
l
l

b
e
 
i
n
d
e
m

n
i
f
i
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
c
l
i
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
l
d
 
h
a
r
m

l
e
s
s
 
a
n
d

d
e
f
e
n
d
e
d
 
f
r
o
m

 
a
l
l
 
c
l
a
i
m

s
,
 
d
a
m

a
g
e
s
,
 
l
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
l
o
s
s
e
s
,

a
n
d
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
a
t
t
o
r
n
e
y
s
'
 
f
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t
s
,

a
r
i
s
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
s
u
c
h
 
m

i
s
u
s
e
 
o
r
 
r
e
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
.

I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
u
n
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
r
e
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
,
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
r
 
a
s
 
a
 
w

h
o
l
e
,
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
h
i
b
i
t
e
d
.

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
.

M
e

a
d

 
a

n
d

 
H

u
n

t
,
 
I
n

c
.

\\CORP.MEADHUNT.COM\SHAREDFOLDERS\ENTP\1000720\171348.01\TECH\CAD\C-506 RAQUETBALL COURT DETAILS.DWG

6/10/2019 10:25:51 AM

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA

POLLARD PARK IMPROVEMENTS

1
0

0
0

7
2

0
-
1

7
1

3
4

8
.
0

2

J
U

N
E

 
0

3
,
 
2

0
1

9

S
E

M

A
M

G

4680 PENINSULA DRIVE

PONCE INLET, FL 32127

4
4

0
1

 
E

a
s
t
p

o
r
t
 
P

a
r
k
w

a
y

P
o

r
t
 
O

r
a

n
g

e
,
 
F

L
 
3

2
1

2
7

p
h

o
n

e
:
 
3

8
6

-
7

6
1

-
6

8
1

0

m
e

a
d

h
u

n
t
.
c
o

m

F
L

 
C

e
r
t
.
 
#

2
6

7
3

0

6
/
0

3
/
1

9
 
R

E
L

E
A

S
E

D

F
O

R
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

D
A

K

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

C
O

L
O

R
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
S

H
O

W
N

 
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

2
.

C
O

L
O

R
 
C

O
A

T
 
&

 
A

C
R

Y
L

I
C

 
R

E
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

R
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
3

5
 
T

O

4
0

 
M

I
L

S
 
T

H
I
C

K
.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 
P

E
R

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N

6
"
 
T

H
K

.
 
B

A
S

E
 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
L

I
M

E
R

O
C

K

O
R

 
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

D
 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

T
O

 
9

8
%

 
D

E
N

S
I
T

Y
 
A

A
S

H
T

O
 
T

-
1

8
0

 
A

N
D

P
R

I
M

E
D

 
P

R
I
O

R
 
T

O
 
I
N

S
T

A
L

L
A

T
I
O

N
 
O

F

A
S

P
H

A
L

T

S
P

O
R

T
 
C

O
U

R
T

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

1

N
T

S

A
N

D
R

E
W

 
M

.
 
G

I
A

N
N

I
N

I
,
 
P

.
E

.

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
 
N

O
.
 
4
6
6
0
1

1
 
1

/
2

"
 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
 
S

P
-
9

.
5

1
0

'
 
H

I
G

H
 
F

E
N

C
E

W
I
T

H
 
W

I
N

D
S

C
R

E
E

N

4
'
 
H

I
G

H
 
F

E
N

C
E

4
'
 
H

I
G

H
 
F

E
N

C
E

O
N

 
E

A
S

T
 
S

I
D

E

C
O

U
R

T
 
I
N

T
E

R
I
O

R

C
O

L
O

R
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
G

R
E

E
N

B
O

R
D

E
R

 
C

O
L

O
R

T
O

 
B

E
 
S

A
N

D

4
'
 
H

I
G

H
 
F

E
N

C
E

10' HIGH FENCE

WITH WINDSCREEN

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

T
H

E
 
P

I
C

K
L

E
B

A
L

L
 
C

O
U

R
T

S
 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

E
D

 
 
B

Y
 
A

S
I
N

G
L

E
 
E

N
T

I
T

Y
 
W

I
T

H
 
A

 
M

I
N

I
M

U
M

 
O

F
 
T

H
R

E
E

 
(
3

)
 
Y

E
A

R
S

E
X

P
E

R
I
E

N
C

E
 

I
N

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
N

G
 

C
O

U
R

T
S

 
O

F
 

S
I
M

I
L

A
R

N
A

T
U

R
E

.
 
E

X
P

E
R

I
E

N
C

E
 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
D

 
W

I
T

H
 
T

H
E

 
B

I
D

S
U

B
M

I
T

T
A

L
 
A

L
O

N
G

 
W

I
T

H
 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

S
 
F

O
R

 
A

 
M

I
N

I
M

U
M

O
F

 
5

 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 
W

I
T

H
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

A
S

T
 
T

H
R

E
E

 
(
3

)
 
Y

E
A

R
S

.

2
.

T
H

E
 

S
I
N

G
L

E
 

E
N

T
I
T

Y
 

D
E

S
C

R
I
B

E
D

 
I
N

 
N

O
T

E
 

1
,
 

S
H

A
L

L

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
 

T
H

E
 

E
N

T
I
R

E
 

C
O

U
R

T
 

I
N

C
L

U
D

I
N

G
 

B
A

S
E

,

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
,
 

A
C

R
Y

L
I
C

 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

,
 

P
O

L
E

S
,
 

N
E

T
S

,
 

S
T

R
I
P

I
N

G
,

A
N

D
 
F

E
N

C
I
N

G
.

3
.

W
I
N

D
S

C
R

E
E

N
 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E
 
T

E
N

N
.
 
A

I
R

 
V

C
P

 
W

I
N

D
S

C
R

E
E

N
 
A

S

M
A

N
U

F
A

C
T

U
R

E
D

 
B

Y
 

P
U

T
T

E
R

M
A

N
 

 
A

T
L

E
T

I
C

S
 

C
O

L
O

R
 

-

G
R

E
E

N
,
 
O

R
 
A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 
E

Q
U

A
L

.

4
.

P
I
C

K
L

E
B

A
L

L
 
N

E
T

S
 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E
 
C

O
L

L
E

G
I
A

T
E

 
N

E
T

 
#
 
1

3
0

0
 
A

S

M
A

N
U

F
A

C
T

U
R

E
D

 
B

Y
 

P
U

T
T

E
R

M
A

N
 

A
T

L
E

T
I
C

S
 

O
R

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 
E

Q
U

A
L

.

Attachment 2



B
A

S
K

E
T

B
A

L
L

 
G

O
A

L
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

2

N
T

S

10'-0"

4
'
-
0

"
 
M

I
N

.

4'-0"

1
8

"

D
I
A

.

G
O

A
L

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E
 
O

F
 
D

O
U

B
L

E
,
 
S

O
L

I
D

R
I
M

 
D

E
S

I
G

N
 
 
A

N
D

 
A

T
T

A
C

H
 
D

I
R

E
C

T
L

Y

T
O

 
M

O
U

N
T

I
N

G
 
B

R
A

C
K

E
T

 
T

H
R

O
U

G
H

B
A

C
K

B
O

A
R

D

B
A

C
K

B
O

A
R

D

M
O

U
N

T
I
N

G
 
B

R
A

C
K

E
T

B
A

C
K

B
O

A
R

D
 
B

R
A

C
E

B
A

N
D

 
C

L
A

M
P

S

M
I
N

.
 
4

 
1

/
2

"
 
D

I
A

.

G
A

L
V

A
N

I
Z

E
D

 
S

T
E

E
L

G
O

O
S

E
N

E
C

K
 
P

O
S

T

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 
A

N
C

H
O

R

3
,
0

0
0

 
P

S
I
 
 
I
N

 
2

8
 
D

A
Y

S
.

#
4

 
R

E
B

A
R

 
T

H
R

U
 
P

O
L

E

1
2

"

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

B
A

S
K

E
T

B
A

L
L

 
C

O
U

R
T

C
-
5

0
5

S
H

E
E

T
 
C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S

D
O

 
N

O
T

 
S

C
A

L
E

 
D

R
A

W
I
N

G
S

M
&

H
 
N

O
.
:

D
A

T
E

:

D
E

S
I
G

N
E

D
 
B

Y
:

D
R

A
W

N
 
B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 
B

Y
:

I
S

S
U

E
D

T
h
e
s
e
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
 
s
h
a
l
l
 
n
o
t
 
b
e
 
u
s
e
d
 
f
o
r
 
a
n
y
 
p
u
r
p
o
s
e
 
o
r

p
r
o
j
e
c
t
 
f
o
r
 
w

h
i
c
h
 
i
t
 
i
s
 
n
o
t
 
i
n
t
e
n
d
e
d
.
 
M

e
a
d
 
&

 
H

u
n
t
 
s
h
a
l
l

b
e
 
i
n
d
e
m

n
i
f
i
e
d
 
b
y
 
t
h
e
 
c
l
i
e
n
t
 
a
n
d
 
h
e
l
d
 
h
a
r
m

l
e
s
s
 
a
n
d

d
e
f
e
n
d
e
d
 
f
r
o
m

 
a
l
l
 
c
l
a
i
m

s
,
 
d
a
m

a
g
e
s
,
 
l
i
a
b
i
l
i
t
i
e
s
,
 
l
o
s
s
e
s
,

a
n
d
 
e
x
p
e
n
s
e
s
,
 
i
n
c
l
u
d
i
n
g
 
a
t
t
o
r
n
e
y
s
'
 
f
e
e
s
 
a
n
d
 
c
o
s
t
s
,

a
r
i
s
i
n
g
 
o
u
t
 
o
f
 
s
u
c
h
 
m

i
s
u
s
e
 
o
r
 
r
e
u
s
e
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 
d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
.

I
n
 
a
d
d
i
t
i
o
n
,
 
u
n
a
u
t
h
o
r
i
z
e
d
 
r
e
p
r
o
d
u
c
t
i
o
n
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
s
e

d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t
s
,
 
i
n
 
p
a
r
t
 
o
r
 
a
s
 
a
 
w

h
o
l
e
,
 
i
s
 
p
r
o
h
i
b
i
t
e
d
.

S
H

E
E

T
 
N

O
.

M
e

a
d

 
a

n
d

 
H

u
n

t
,
 
I
n

c
.

\\CORP.MEADHUNT.COM\SHAREDFOLDERS\ENTP\1000720\171348.01\TECH\CAD\C-506 RAQUETBALL COURT DETAILS.DWG

6/10/2019 10:25:52 AM

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA

POLLARD PARK IMPROVEMENTS

1
0

0
0

7
2

0
-
1

7
1

3
4

8
.
0

2

J
U

N
E

 
0

3
,
 
2

0
1

9

S
E

M

A
M

G

4680 PENINSULA DRIVE

PONCE INLET, FL 32127

4
4

0
1

 
E

a
s
t
p

o
r
t
 
P

a
r
k
w

a
y

P
o

r
t
 
O

r
a

n
g

e
,
 
F

L
 
3

2
1

2
7

p
h

o
n

e
:
 
3

8
6

-
7

6
1

-
6

8
1

0

m
e

a
d

h
u

n
t
.
c
o

m

F
L

 
C

e
r
t
.
 
#

2
6

7
3

0

6
/
0

3
/
1

9
 
R

E
L

E
A

S
E

D

F
O

R
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N

D
A

K

A
N

D
R

E
W

 
M

.
 
G

I
A

N
N

I
N

I
,
 
P

.
E

.

R
E

G
I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N
 
 
N

O
.
 
4
6
6
0
1

B
A

S
K

E
T

B
A

L
L
 
C

O
U

R
T

 
P

L
A

N

S
C

A
L
E

:
 
1
"
 
=

 
5
'

I
N

T
E

R
I
O

R
 
C

O
U

R
T

C
O

L
O

R
 
T

O
 
B

E

L
I
G

H
T

 
B

L
U

E

B
A

S
K

E
T

B
A

L
L

G
O

A
L

S
E

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

T
H

I
S

 
S

H
E

E
T

B
O

R
D

E
R

 
C

O
L

O
R

T
O

 
B

E
 
S

A
N

D

2
"
 
W

H
I
T

E
 
S

T
R

I
P

I
N

G

T
Y

P
I
C

A
L

49.8'

2.4'

2.8' 13.8' 12.000000' 13.7'

45.0'

1
9

.
0

'

R

6

.

0

'

1

9

'

.

7

5

'

2.4'

6
7

.
0

'

3
3

.
5

'
3

3
.
5

'

S
E

E
 
D

E
T

A
I
L

 
F

O
R

 
C

O
M

P
O

S
I
T

I
O

N

O
F

 
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 
C

O
U

R
T

 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

C
O

L
O

R
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
S

H
O

W
N

 
O

N
 
P

L
A

N

2
.

C
O

L
O

R
 
C

O
A

T
 
&

 
A

C
R

Y
L

I
C

 
R

E
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

R
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
3

5
 
T

O

4
0

 
M

I
L

S
 
T

H
I
C

K
.

C
O

L
O

R
E

D
 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

 
P

E
R

 
S

P
E

C
I
F

I
C

A
T

I
O

N

6
"
 
T

H
K

.
 
B

A
S

E
 
M

A
T

E
R

I
A

L
 
T

O
 
B

E
 
L

I
M

E
R

O
C

K

O
R

 
R

E
C

Y
C

L
E

D
 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
C

O
M

P
A

C
T

E
D

T
O

 
9

8
%

 
D

E
N

S
I
T

Y
 
A

A
S

H
T

O
 
T

-
1

8
0

 
A

N
D

P
R

I
M

E
D

 
P

R
I
O

R
 
T

O
 
I
N

S
T

A
L

L
A

T
I
O

N
 
O

F

A
S

P
H

A
L

T

S
P

O
R

T
 
C

O
U

R
T

 
D

E
T

A
I
L

1

N
T

S

1
 
1

/
2

"
 
A

S
P

H
A

L
T

 
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 
 
S

P
-
9

.
5

N
O

T
E

S
:

1
.

T
H

E
 
B

A
S

K
E

T
B

A
L

L
 
C

O
U

R
T

S
 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

E
D

 
 
B

Y
 
A

S
I
N

G
L

E
 

E
N

T
I
T

Y
 

W
I
T

H
 

A
 

M
I
N

I
M

U
M

 
O

F
 

T
H

R
E

E
 

(
3

)
 

Y
E

A
R

S

E
X

P
E

R
I
E

N
C

E
 

I
N

 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
N

G
 

C
O

U
R

T
S

 
O

F
 

S
I
M

I
L

A
R

N
A

T
U

R
E

.
 
E

X
P

E
R

I
E

N
C

E
 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E
 
P

R
O

V
I
D

E
D

 
W

I
T

H
 
T

H
E

 
B

I
D

S
U

B
M

I
T

T
A

L
 
A

L
O

N
G

 
W

I
T

H
 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

S
 
F

O
R

 
A

 
M

I
N

I
M

U
M

 
O

F

5
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

S
 
W

I
T

H
I
N

 
T

H
E

 
P

A
S

T
 
T

H
R

E
E

 
(
3

)
 
Y

E
A

R
S

.

2
.

T
H

E
 

S
I
N

G
L

E
 

E
N

T
I
T

Y
 

D
E

S
C

R
I
B

E
D

 
I
N

 
N

O
T

E
 

1
,
 

S
H

A
L

L

C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
 

T
H

E
 

E
N

T
I
R

E
 

C
O

U
R

T
 

I
N

C
L

U
D

I
N

G
 

B
A

S
E

,

A
S

P
H

A
L

T
,
 

A
C

R
Y

L
I
C

 
S

U
R

F
A

C
E

,
 

P
O

L
E

S
,
 

N
E

T
S

,
 

S
T

R
I
P

I
N

G
,

A
N

D
 
F

E
N

C
I
N

G
.

3
.

B
A

S
Q

U
E

T
B

A
L

L
 

G
O

A
L

,
 

B
A

C
K

B
O

A
R

D
 

A
S

S
E

M
B

L
Y

 
S

H
A

L
L

 
B

E

M
O

D
E

L
 

#
P

R
5

5
 

A
S

 
M

A
N

U
F

A
C

T
U

R
E

D
 

B
Y

 
B

I
S

O
N

 
I
N

C
.
 

O
R

A
P

P
R

O
V

E
D

 
E

Q
U

A
L

.

4
.
0

'
4

.
0

'



Current basketball court at Pollard Park 

Attachment 3



Attachment 4

Jackie French
Highlight

Jackie French
Highlight

Jackie French
Highlight


	item 4.pdf
	ADPB9D8.tmp
	Town of Ponce Inlet
	CULTURAL SERVICES, HISTORIC PRESERVATION, AND TREE ADVISORY BOARD
	REGULAR MEETING MINUTES


	item 6-A.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.
	1. CSB-Cont. Athletic court direction - final.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.





